

## Mercy Secondary School, Inchicore.

# ANTI-BULLYING BEHAVIOUR POLICY 2024/2025

Mercy Secondary Inchicore is a co-educational Catholic school in the heart of Inchicore, Dublin 8. Just as our founder Catherine McAuley imagined and created a world, in which education empowered and provided opportunities for all; we continue that vision of realising all that our students and our learning community can become.

At the heart of our mission is the belief that each and every member of our community is a valued and treasured child of God. We are committed to creating opportunities for our students. We hold the belief that we have a duty to dream big for each and every person within our learning community.

# Contents

Section	Page
Introductory Statement	2
Scope	2
Principles of Our Policy	3
Rationale	4
Relationship to Our Mission Statement	4
Objectives	4
Members of the School Community Covered by the Policy	5
Definition of Bullying	5
Types of Bullying	6
Education and Prevention	9
Procedures for Investigating and Follow-Up of Bullying Behaviour	11
Procedures for Recording Bullying	13
Supports for Students Affected by Bullying	14
Referral of Serious Cases to the HSE	14
Supervision and Monitoring of Pupils	15
Prevention of Harassment	15
Dissemination	15
Review	15
Appendix 1- The Recording of a Report of Bullying	17
Appendix 2- Determination that Bullying has occurred	18
Appendix 3- Template for Recording Bullying Behaviour	19
Appendix 4- Checklist	21

In accordance with the requirements of the Education (Welfare) Act 2000 and the code of behaviour guidelines issued by the NEWB (now TUSLA), The Board of Management of Mercy Secondary School has adopted the following anti-bullying policy within the framework of the school's overall code of behaviour. This policy fully complies with the requirements of the *Anti-Bullying Procedures for Primary and Post Primary Schools* which were published in September 2013.

## **Introductory Statement**

The Board of Management and the staff of Mercy Secondary School recognises the very serious nature of bullying and the negative impact that it can have on the lives of pupils. The staff of Mercy Secondary School accepts a collective responsibility, under the Guidance of the Principal, to act in preventing bullying, aggressive, harassing behaviour by any member of the school community. The school recognises the role of the entire school community in identifying and reporting bullying behaviour, and acknowledges its own role in taking appropriate action when bullying behaviour becomes apparent. Every person, student, staff member and parent in Mercy Secondary School is entitled to respect and to be free of any type of bullying. The school will be proactive to ensure, as far as possible, that bullying does not take place. It is important to highlight that the reporting of bullying incidents is always the most responsible behaviour.

# Scope

This policy applies to the bullying of students and should be observed during the following time periods/activities:

- Within school Time
- Travelling to and from school
- School activity including trips, sporting and cultural events.
- Extra-curricular activities

Furthermore, the school reserves the right to apply its bullying policy in respect of bullying that occurs at a location, activity, function or programme that is not school related if in the opinion of the Principal and/or the Board of Management the alleged bullying has created a hostile environment at the school for the victim, has infringed on the rights of the victim at the school and/or has materially or substantially disrupted the education process or the orderly operation of the school.

This policy fully complies with the requirements of the Anti-Bullying Procedures for Primary and Post-Primary Schools which were published in September 2013 and

should be read in conjunction with the school's Code of Behaviour, Acceptable Use policy, Substance Use policy and our Intimate Care Policy.

# **Principles of Our Policy**

The Board of Management of Mercy Secondary School recognises the very serious nature of bullying and the negative impact that it can have on the lives of students and is therefore fully committed to the following key principles of best practice in preventing and tackling bullying behaviour:

<ul> <li>A positive school culture and climate which:</li> <li>Is welcoming of difference and diversity and is based on inclusivity</li> <li>Encourages students to disclose incidents of bullying behaviour in a non-threatening environment</li> <li>Promotes respectful relationships across the school community</li> <li>Effective leadership</li> <li>A school-wide approach</li> </ul>
A shared understanding of what bullying is and its impact. Implementation of education and prevention strategies (including awareness raising measures) that:
<ul> <li>Build empathy, respect and resilience in pupils, and</li> <li>Explicitly address the issues of cyber-bullying and identity-based bullying including in particular, homophobic and transphobic bullying</li> </ul>
Effective supervision and monitoring of pupils
Supports for staff
Consistent recording, investigation and follow up of bullying behaviour (including use of established intervention strategies)
and
On-going evaluation of the effectiveness of the anti-bullying policy.

### Rationale

This policy has been formulated in order to create a community that respects the rights of all members and ensures that all students can learn in a safe and caring environment.

The Board of Management has a statutory obligation to ensure that a policy is in place that reflects the principles and values of the religious and educational philosophy of the school. The role of all members of the school community: management, teaching, secretarial and auxiliary staff, parents and students is to care for each other and to provide everyone with a safe environment.

By law it is the responsibility of schools to develop an Anti-Bullying Policy.

## **Relationship to Our Mission Statement**

Mercy Secondary School and CEIST education emphasises the importance of the quality of relationships within and beyond the school. "We respect the unique and intrinsic value of every person" The Mission Statement of Mercy Secondary School, has at its core the holistic development and care of the student. This policy is an integral part of a positive school ethos where learning and personal development can take place and where good interpersonal relationships can flourish.

# **Objectives**

To create a school ethos which encourages students to disclose and discuss incidents of bullying behaviour;

- To raise awareness of bullying as an unacceptable form of behaviour with school management, teachers, students, parents/guardians;
- To create a school ethos that acknowledges, accommodates and respects a diversity of students across the nine grounds covered by equality legislation;
- To ensure that the school's Social, Personal and Health Education raises awareness of the factors associated with bullying behaviour and develops appropriate knowledge, skills and behaviours;
- To take practical actions to prevent incidents of bullying behaviour e.g. to ensure comprehensive supervision and monitoring measures through which all areas of school activity are kept under observation;
- To develop procedures for reporting and recording incidents of bullying behaviour;
- To develop procedures for investigating and dealing with incidents of bullying behaviour:

- To develop a programme of support for those affected by bullying behaviour and those involved in bullying behaviour;
- To work with, and through, the various local agencies in countering all forms of bullying and anti-social behaviour
- To create a school ethos that acknowledges, accommodates and respects a diversity of people across the nine grounds;
- To promote activities that foster a caring school community
- To highlight the negative effects that Bullying can have on a person's Wellbeing, with particular focus on the strands in the New Junior Cycle Wellbeing Guidelines (Active, Responsible, Connected, Resilient, Aware, Respected).

# Members of the School Community covered by this Policy

All members of the school community are subject to this code, particularly the following relationships:

- Student to Student:
- Student to any Staff Member;
- Staff Member to Student;
- Parent to Staff Member;
- Staff Member to Parent;
- Staff Member to Staff Member

# **Definition of Bullying**

In accordance with the Anti-Bullying Procedures for Primary and Post-Primary Schools, bullying is defined as follows:

Bullying is unwanted negative behaviour, verbal, psychological or physical conduct by an individual or group against another person (or persons) and which is repeated over time.

Isolated or one-off incidents of intentional negative behaviour, including a once-off offensive or hurtful text message or other private messaging, do not fall within the definition of bullying and should be dealt with, as appropriate, in accordance with the school's Code of Behaviour.

However, in the context of this policy, placing a once-off offensive or hurtful public message, image or statement on a social network site or other public forum where

that message, image or statement can be viewed and/or repeated by other people will be regarded as bullying behaviour.

Negative behaviour that does not meet this definition of bullying will be dealt with in accordance with the school's Code of Behaviour.

Additional information on different types of bullying is set out in Section 2 of the *Anti-Bullying Procedures for Primary and Post-Primary Schools*.

# **Types of Bullying**

The following types of bullying behaviour are given as examples and are included in our definition of bullying but is not limited to them:

General	<ul> <li>Harassment based on any of the nine grounds in</li> </ul>
behaviours	the equality legislation, e.g. sexual harassment,
which apply to all	homophobic bullying, racist bullying, etc.
	<ul> <li>Physical aggression</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Damage to property</li> </ul>
	Name calling
	Slagging
	The production, display or circulation of written
	words, pictures or other materials aimed at intimidating
	another person
	Offensive graffiti
	<ul><li>Extortion</li></ul>
	Intimidation
	Insulting or offensive gestures
	The "look"
	Invasion of personal space
	<ul> <li>A combination of any of the types listed</li> </ul>
Cyber	❖ Denigration: spreading rumours, lies or gossip to
	hurt a person's reputation
	Harassment: continually sending vicious, mean or
	disturbing messages to an individual

	Impersonation: posting offensive or aggressive
	messages under another person's name
	Flaming: using inflammatory or vulgar words to
	provoke an online fight
	Trickery: fooling someone into sharing personal
	information which you then post online
	Outing: posting or sharing confidential or
	compromising information or images
	Exclusion: purposefully excluding someone from
	an online group
	Cyber stalking: ongoing harassment and
	denigration that causes a person considerable fear for
	their safety
	Silent telephone/mobile phone calls
	Abuse text messages
	Abusive email
	Abusive communication on social networks, e.g.
	Facebook/Ask.fm/Twitter/You Tube or on games
	consoles
	Abusive website comments/blogs/pictures
	Abusive posts on any form of communication
	technology
Homophobic and	Spreading rumours about a person's sexual
Transgender	orientation
	Taunting a person of a different sexual orientation
	· Name calling e.g. gay, queer, lesbian – used in a
	derogatory manner
	Physical intimidation or attacks
	❖ · Threats
Race, nationality,	<ul> <li>Discrimination, prejudice, comments or insults</li> </ul>
ethnic background	about colour, nationality, culture, social class, religious
and membership of the Traveller	beliefs, ethnic or traveller background
community	<ul> <li>Exclusion on the basis of any of the above</li> </ul>

Relational	This involves manipulating relationships as a means of
	bullying. Behaviours include:
	❖ · Malicious gossip
	Isolation and exclusion
	❖ · Ignoring
	Excluding from the group
	Taking someone's friends away
	❖ · "Bitching"
	❖ · Spreading rumours
	Breaking confidence
	Talking loud enough so that the victim can hear
	❖ · The "look"
Sexual	<ul> <li>Unwelcome or inappropriate sexual comments or</li> </ul>
	touching
	❖ · Harassment
Special Educational	❖ · Name calling
Needs, Disability	Taunting others because of their disability or
	learning needs
	<ul> <li>Taking advantage of some students' vulnerabilities</li> </ul>
	and limited capacity to recognise and defend
	themselves against bullying
	Taking advantage of some students' vulnerabilities
	and limited capacity to understand social situations
	and social cues
	Mimicking a person's disability
	Setting others up for ridicule

The following signs and symptoms may suggest that a pupil is being bullied:

- Anxiety about travelling to and from school e.g. requesting parents to drive or collect them, changing travel routes, avoiding regular times for travelling to or from school
- Unwillingness to go to school, refusal to attend, truancy
- Deterioration in educational performance, loss of concentration and loss of enthusiasm and interest in school
- Pattern of physical illnesses e.g. headaches, stomach aches

- Unexplained changes either in mood or behaviour which may be particularly noticeable before returning to school after weekends or more especially after longer school holidays
- Visible signs of anxiety or distress e.g. stammering, withdrawing, nightmares, difficulty in sleeping, crying, not eating, vomiting, bedwetting
- Spontaneous out-of-character comments about either pupils or teachers
- Possessions missing or damaged
- Increased requests for money or stealing money
- Unexplained bruising or cuts or damaged clothing
- Reluctance and/or refusal to say what is troubling them

There may be other signs depending on the individual and their circumstances. The above signs do not necessarily mean that a pupil is being bullied but if repeated or occurring in combination, these signs do warrant investigation in order to establish what is affecting the pupil.

#### **Education and Prevention**

The education and prevention strategies used in Mercy Secondary School are as follows:

#### School-wide approach

- A school-wide approach to the fostering of respect for all members of the school community.
- The promotion of the value of diversity to address issues of prejudice and stereotyping and highlight the unacceptability of bullying behaviour.
- The fostering and enhancing of the self-esteem of our students through curricular and extracurricular activities. Students will be provided with opportunities to develop a positive sense of self-worth through formal and informal interactions.
- Whole staff professional development on bullying to ensure that all staff develop an awareness of what bullying is, how it impacts on pupils' lives and the need to respond to it prevention and intervention.
- School-wide awareness raising and training on all aspects of bullying to include students, parents/guardians and the wider school community. Parents are supported in their role by the organisation of seminars by the HSCL
- Students, parents/guardians are informed of the Anti-Bullying Behaviour policy on admission. This policy is available on the school website and a "student friendly" policy is printed in the student journal. The anti-bullying code is displayed in every classroom and the Student Support Noticeboard

- contains relevant information. The policy is circulated to new members of staff and training on procedures is given periodically.
- Reference is made to our policy at assembly and/or tutor time.
- Cross-curricular opportunities are made and allow for the fostering of right relationships. "Friendship Week", "Healthy Living Week", "Spirit Day" and communal events all contribute to a good relational climate and the inclusive nature of the school.
- We ensure that there is adequate supervision before, during and after school.
   Our CCTV system supplements the work of supervisors in this regard.
   Non-teaching staff are all encouraged to report any incidents of perceived bullying behaviour.
- The encouragement of a culture of telling with particular emphasis on the importance of bystanders. In that way, students will gain confidence in "telling". It is made clear to all students that when they report incidents of bullying, they are behaving responsibly.
- Ensuring that students know who to tell and how to tell, e.g. Direct approach to a teacher after a class or to a member of the student support staff
- An approach to a designated student who will accompany the student to a teacher:
  - · Inform a parent/guardian who will contact the Year Head
  - · Email the Principal or any teacher directly
  - · Highlight the difficulty in a confidential questionnaire administered once a term
- Approaches to decreasing the likelihood of bullying for students with SEN include improving inclusion, focusing on developing social skills, paying attention to key moments such as transitioning from primary to post-primary and cultivating a good school culture which has respect for all and helping one another as central.
- The development of an Acceptable Use Policy in the school to include the necessary steps to ensure that the access to technology within the school is strictly monitored, as is the pupils' use of mobile phones.

The listing of supports currently being used in the school and the identification of other supports available to the school, e.g. GLEN <a href="www.glen.ie">www.glen.ie</a>, BeLonGTO <a href="www.belongto.org">www.belongto.org</a>.

#### <u>Implementation of Curricula</u>

 The full implementation of the SPHE, CSPE curricula and the RSE Programmes. The SPHE programme makes specific provisions for exploring bullying as well as the inter-related areas of belonging, communications, integration, conflict, friendship, personal safety and relationships. The Relationships and Sexuality Education programme provides opportunities to

- explore and discuss areas such as human sexuality and relationships, which have particular relevance to identity-based bullying.
- Resources from the following programmes are used: Healthy Living, Healthy Times, Healthy Choices, Cool School Programme, Be Safe, Be Webwise, Growing Up, LGBT and The Trust Pack.

# Procedures for Investigating and Follow-Up of Bullying Behaviour

The procedures for investigation, follow-up and recording of bullying behaviour and the established intervention strategies used by the school for dealing with cases of bullying behaviour are as follows:

The primary aim in investigating and dealing with bullying is to resolve any issues and to restore, as far as is practicable, the relationships of the parties involved rather than to apportion blame. In investigating and dealing with bullying, the teachers will exercise their professional judgement to determine whether bullying has occurred and how best the situation might be resolved.

### Reporting bullying behaviour

- Any student or parent(s)/guardian(s) may bring a bullying incident to any teacher in the school.
- All reports, including anonymous reports of bullying, must be investigated and dealt with by the relevant teacher (where possible).
- Teaching and non-teaching staff such as secretaries, special needs assistants (SNAs), caretakers, cleaners, must report any incidents of bullying behaviour witnessed by them, or mentioned to them, to the relevant teacher.

## Investigating and dealing with incidents: Style of approach

- The Year Head or teacher informed of a concern of bullying will communicate the allegation to the Principal. The Deputy Principal and/or an Assistant Principal will be appointed by the Principal to join the Year Head in an investigation of the allegation.
- The parents/guardians of all parties involved will be informed by the relevant teachers that an investigation will be initiated and will be forwarded a copy of the Anti Bullying Behaviour policy.
- The parents/guardians and students are required to cooperate with the investigation and assist the school in resolving any issues and restoring, as far as is practicable, the relationship of the parties of those involved as quickly as possible.

- Teachers take a calm, unemotional problem-solving approach when dealing with incidents of alleged bullying behaviour reported by students, staff or parents/guardian.
- All incidents will be investigated outside of the classroom situation to ensure the privacy of all involved. The teachers seek answers to questions of what, where, when, who and why.
- All interviews should be conducted with sensitivity and with due regard to the rights of all students concerned. Students who are not directly involved can also provide very useful information in this way.
- If a group is involved, each member is interviewed individually at first and thereafter, all those involved may be met as a group. At the group meeting, if deemed appropriate, each member is asked for their account of what happened to ensure that everyone in the group is clear about each other's statement. It may also be appropriate or helpful sometimes to ask those involved to write down their account of the incident.
- Each member of a group should be supported through the possible pressures that may face them from the other members of the group after the interview by the teacher. It may also be appropriate or helpful to ask those involved to write down their account of the incident(s).
- Where it has been determined that a student has been engaged in bullying behaviour, it is made clear how they are in breach of the school's Anti Bullying Behaviour policy and efforts are made to try and get them to see the situation from the perspective of the student being bullied.
- At the conclusion of the investigation, the teachers inform all parties including parents/guardians of their findings. The Principal receives the report and decides on a disciplinary sanction if necessary. The imposition of disciplinary sanctions is a private matter between the student being disciplined, her parents/guardian and the school.
- Follow-up meetings with the relevant parties involved are arranged separately with a view to possibly bringing them together at a later date if the victim is ready and agreeable.
- In cases where the relevant teachers, using their professional judgement, consider that the bullying behaviour has not been adequately and appropriately addressed within 20 school days after they have determined that bullying behaviour has occurred, it must be recorded by the relevant teachers on the 'Form for recording bullying behaviour' (Appendix 3) and the Principal must be informed immediately. In determining whether a bullying case has been adequately and appropriately addressed the relevant teachers must, as part of their professional judgement, take the following factors into account: whether the bullying behaviour has ceased; whether any issues between the parties have been resolved as far as is practicable; and has any feedback been received from the parties involved, their parents/guardian or the school Principal.

Where a parent/guardian is not satisfied that the school has dealt with a
bullying case in accordance with these procedures, the parents/guardian must
be referred, as appropriate, to the school's complaints procedures. In the
event that a parent/guardian has exhausted the school's complaints
procedures and is still not satisfied, the Principal will advise the
parents/guardians of their right to make a complaint to the Ombudsman for
Children.

## **Procedures for Recording Bullying Behaviour**

It is imperative that all recording of bullying incidents must be done in an objective and factual manner.

The school's procedures for noting and reporting bullying behaviour are as follows:

### Informal - pre-determination that bullying has occurred - Appendix 1

- All staff must keep a written record of any incidents witnessed by them or notified to them. All incidents must be reported to the relevant teachers.
- While all reports, including anonymous reports of bullying must be investigated and dealt with by the relevant teachers, the relevant teachers must keep a written record of the reports.
- The relevant teachers must inform the Year Head of all incidents being investigated as appropriate.

#### Informal – determination that bullying has occurred – Appendix 2

- If it is established by the relevant teachers that bullying has occurred, the relevant teacher must keep appropriate written records which will assist his/her efforts to resolve the issues and restore, as far as is practicable, the relationships of the parties involved. (See Appendix 2).
- All records will be kept in the school building.

### Formal – Appendix 3

The relevant teacher must use the recording template at Appendix 3 to record the bullying behaviour in the following circumstances:

a) in cases where they considers that the bullying behaviour has not been adequately and appropriately addressed within 20 school days after they have determined that bullying behaviour occurred; and

b) behaviours deemed as serious by the relevant teacher must be recorded and reported immediately to the Principal.

## Supports for Students Affected by Bullying

The school's programme of support for working with students affected by bullying is as follows:

- A support structure for students who have experienced bullying is in place in Mercy Secondary School. Such students may need counselling and/or opportunities to participate in activities designed to raise their self-esteem, to develop their friendship and social skills and thereby build resilience whenever this is needed. We use restorative practice, mediation or reconciliation where appropriate. We maintain open communications between school, parents/guardians and outside agencies. We work together to resolve the situation and protect the victim.
- A programme of support for those students involved in bullying behaviour is also part of the school's intervention process. Students involved in bullying behaviour need assistance on an ongoing basis. For those with low self-esteem, opportunities are developed to increase feelings of self-worth. Therefore we recognise that it is important that the learning strategies applied within the school allow for the enhancement of the student's self-worth. Students who engage in bullying behaviour may need counselling to help them learn other ways of meeting their needs without violating the rights of others.

#### Referral of Serious Cases to the HSE

- In relation to bullying in schools, Children First National Guidance for the Protection and Welfare of Children 2011(Children First) and the Child Protection Procedures for Primary and Post-Primary Schools provide that in situations where "the incident is serious and where the behaviour is regarded as potentially abusive, the school must consult the HSE Children and Family Social Services with a view to drawing up an appropriate response, such as a management plan".
- Serious instances of bullying behaviour are, in accordance with the Children First and the Child Protection Procedures for Primary and Post-Primary Schools, referred to the HSE Children and Family Services and/or Gardaí as appropriate.
- The Child Protection Procedures for Primary and Post-Primary Schools also provide that where school personnel have concerns about a child but are not sure whether to report the matter to the HSE, the Designated Liaison Person must seek advice from the HSE Children and Family Social Services.

# **Supervision and Monitoring of Students**

The Board of Management confirms that appropriate supervision and monitoring policies and practices are in place to both prevent and deal with bullying behaviour and to facilitate early intervention where possible.

#### **Prevention of Harassment**

The Board of Management confirms that the school will, in accordance with its obligations under equality legislation, take all such steps that are reasonably practicable to prevent the sexual harassment of students or staff or the harassment of students or staff on any of the nine grounds specified i.e. gender including transgender, civil status, family status, sexual orientation, religion, age, disability, race and membership of the Traveller community.

#### Dissemination

This policy has been made available to school personnel, published on the school website and provided to the Parents' Association. A copy of this policy will be made available to the Department of Education and Skills and the patron if requested.

#### Review

This policy and its implementation will be reviewed by the Board of Management once in every school year. Written notification that the review has been completed will be made available to school personnel, published on the school website and provided to the Parents' Association (Appendix 4). A record of the review and its outcome will be made available, if requested, to the CEIST and the Department of Education and Skills.

This policy was adopted by the Board of Management of Mercy Secondary S Inchicore				
on				
Signed:	Date:			

(Chairperson of Board of Management)	
Signed:	_ Date:
(Principal)	

Date of next review:21/08/2024

# APPENDIX 1 – THE RECORDING OF A REPORT OF BULLYING



Date:	
Name of person reporting incident:	-
Factual detail: (what, when, where, who, why)	

# APPENDIX 2 – DETERMINATION THAT BULLYING HAS OCCURRED



1. Date of investigation:	
2. Investigation team – relevant teachers: (1) Year Head	
(2) Deputy Principal/Assistant Principal _	
3. Summary comment:	
Please attach all written records of interviews, e	tc. and action taken

# **Appendix 3 TEMPLATE FOR RECORDING BULLYING BEHAVIOUR**



1. Name of student being bu	allied and class group				
Name	lameClass				
2. Name (s) and class(es) of	f student(s) engaged in bullying behaviour				
Name	Class				
3. Source of bullying conce (tick relevant box(es)	rn/report				
Student concerned					
Other student					
Parent/Guardian					
Teacher					
Other					
4. Location of incidents (tick	k relevant box (es))				
Outdoors					
Classroom					
Corridor					
Toilets					
Trip (Including on the bus)					
Rue to School					

Online						
Other (Please Specify)						
5. Name of person (s) who repor	ted th	ne bu	llying con	icern		
6. Type of Bullying Behaviour (ti	ck re	levan	t box(es))			
Physical Aggression			Cyber-b	ullying		
Damage to Property			Intimida	tion		
Isolation/Exclusion			Maliciou	ıs Gossip		
Name Calling			Other (S	Specify)		
Category:  Homophobic Disability/SEN Racis		acist		Membership of Traveller community	Other (spe	ecify)
8. Brief Description of bullying b	pehav	iour a	and its im	pact		
9. Details of action taken						
Signed	_		evant Teac	cher)		

# Appendix 4: Checklist for annual review of the anti-bullying policy and its implementation

The Board of Management must undertake an annual review of the school's anti-bullying policy and its implementation. The following checklist must be used for this purpose. The checklist is an aid to conducting this review and is not intended as an exhaustive list. In order to complete the checklist, an examination and review involving both quantitative and qualitative analysis, as appropriate across the various elements of the implementation of the school's anti-bullying policy will be required.

#### Yes/No

Has the Board formally adopted an anti-bullying policy that fully complies with the requirements of the Anti-bullying procedures for Primary and Post Primary Schools?	
Has the Board published the policy on the school website and provided a copy to the Parents' Association?	
Has the Board ensured that the policy has been made available to school staff (including new staff)?	
Is the Board satisfied that school staff are sufficiently familiar with the policy and procedures to enable them to effectively and consistently apply the policy and procedures in their day to day work?	
Has the Board ensured that the policy has been adequately communicated to all pupils?	
Has the policy documented the prevention and education strategies that the school applies?	
Have all the prevention and education strategies been implemented?	
Has the effectiveness of the prevention and education strategies that have been implemented been examined?	
Is the Board satisfied that all teachers are recording and dealing with incidents in accordance with the policy?	
Has the Board received and minuted the periodic summary reports of the Principal?	
Has the Board discussed how well the school is handling all reports of bullying including those addressed at an early stage and not therefore included in the Principal's periodic report to the Board?	
Has the Board received any complaints from parents regarding the school's handling of bullying incidents?	
Have any parents withdrawn their child from the school citing dissatisfaction with the school's handling of a bullying situation?	
Have any Ombudsman for Children investigations into the school's handling of a bullying case been initiated or completed?	

Has the data available from cases reported to t template) been analysed to identify any issues,	
Has the Board identified any aspects of the sch that require further improvement?	ool's policy and/or its implementation
Has the Board put in place an action plan to ad	dress any areas for improvement?
Signed	Date
Chairperson, Board of Management	
Signed	Date
Principal	
NOTIFICATION REGARDING THE BOARD OF THE ANTI-BUL	
The Board of Management of Mercy Seconda you that:	ry School, Inchicore, wishes to inform
The Board of Management's annual re and its implementation was completed	view of the school's anti-bullying policy d at the Board meeting of
<ul> <li>This review was conducted in accorda Appendix 4 of the Department's Anti-E Post-Primary Schools.</li> </ul>	
Signed	Date
Chairperson, Board of Management	
Signed	Date
Principal	